
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: September 8, 2021 

TO: Rob Allen, Pegi Ard, Michele Bassi, Claire Biancalana, Ceil Cirillo, Karen 
Cogswell, Kathryn Cowan, Paul De La Cerda, Matt Huffaker, Amy 
Lehman, Kelly Nesheim, Ed Newman, Bradley Olin, Erica Ow, Patty 
Quillin, Cory Ray, Maria Esther Rodriguez, Dan Rothwell, Karen 
Semingson, Rachael Spencer, Trevor Strudley, Kate Terrell, Julie 
Thiebaut, Rachel Wedeen, Matt Wetstein, Kristin Wilson, Donna Ziel 

FROM: CCF President, Gun Ruder 

SUBJECT:   Cabrillo College Foundation Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
     Tuesday, September 14, 2021 

           12:00 pm – 2:00 pm  
          Zoom Virtual Meeting 

Item Responsibility Page 
A. Regular Open Session

1. Welcome and Call to Order G. Ruder

2. Approval of Agenda
We reserve the right to change the order in which 
agenda items are discussed and/or acted upon at 
this meeting. Subject to further action, the agenda 
for this meeting is to be approved as presented. 
Items may be added to this agenda for discussion or 
action only as permitted by the Brown Act. 

G. Ruder

B. Public Comment

1. Public Comment Opportunity G. Ruder

C. Special Presentations

1. Women’s Educational Success K. Terrell 5 – 6 

1



Board Meeting Agenda 
September 14, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
   

Item Responsibility Page 
D.  2020-21 Board Members   
1. Introduction of Board members 

New Board Members 
• Karen Cogswell 
• Kathryn Cowan 
• Paul De La Cerda, Cabrillo VP of Instruction 
• Cory Ray 
• Dan Rothwell, Cabrillo College Trustee 

 
2. Board Member Responsibilities 

2.1 Terms of Office  
2.2 CCF Mission Statement and Organizational Chart 
2.3 Brown Act 
2.4 Conflict of Interest Form  

G. Ruder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G. Ruder 
 

 
7 – 9  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
10 
11 
12 

 
E.  Reports   

1. College  President Report 
1.1 California Community Colleges Fast Facts 
1.2 Cabrillo College Fast Facts 

 
2.    Vice President of Administrative Services Report  -  

 Bradley Olin 
 
3.    Vice President of Student Services Report  - Amy Lehman 
 
4.    Vice President of Instruction Report   - Paul De La Cerda 

M. Wetstein 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
13 – 14  
15 
 

   
5. Executive Director Report 

5.1  2020-21 Fundraising Totals 
        July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

               Outright Gifts:                                             $5,992,343 
               Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts:   $   510,000   
               Total:                                                              $6,502,343 

5.2  2020-21 Fundraising Targets 
5.3  2020-21 Disbursements to  
        Cabrillo College   
5.4   2021-22 Fundraising Totals  

July 1, 2021 to September 2, 2021 
               Outright Gifts:                                             $199,987 
               Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts:   $150,000 
               Total:                                                               $349,987 

5.5 2021-21 Fundraising Targets 
5.6 Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets and 

Historical Gifts Chart as of July 31, 2021 

E. Hill 16 
17 
 
 
 
 
18 
19 – 20  
 
21 
 
 
 
 
22 
23 
 

2



Board Meeting Agenda 
September 14, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 

Item Responsibility Page 
F. Action Items
1. May 11, 2021 meeting minutes G. Ruder 24 – 31 

2. June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Financial Statements
2.1 June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Condensed Narrative 
2.2 Balance Sheet  
2.3 Income Statement by Fund 
2.4 Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

P. Ard
32 – 33 
34 – 37 
38 – 40 
 41 – 43 

3. July 31, 2021  Pre-Audit Financial Statements
3.1 July 31, 2021 Pre-Audit Condensed Narrative 
3.2 Balance Sheet  
3.3 Income Statement by Fund 
3.4 Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

P. Ard
44 – 45 
46 – 49 
50 – 51 
52 – 53 

4. Governing Document Review
4.1 Articles of Incorporation 
4.2 Bylaws 
4.3 Master Agreement 

E. Hill 54 
55 – 57 
58 – 72 
73 – 78 

G. Informational Items
1. Report on Executive Director Performance Evaluation G. Ruder

2. President’s Circle Campaign M. Bassi 79 

3. Faculty Grants G. Ruder 80 

4. Scholarships R. Spencer 81 - 82 

5. Student Veterans Endowment E. Hill 83 

6. 2020-21 Audit Schedule N. Machado 84 

7. Cabrillo Foundation Staff E. Hill 85 

8. Committee Calendar and Roster G. Ruder 86 – 87 

3



Board Meeting Agenda 
September 14, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
   

Item Responsibility Page 
H.  Adjournment   

1. Adjournment G. Ruder  
 

2021-22 BOARD MEETINGS: 
Tuesdays, 12:00 pm – 2:00 pm 

---------------- 
November 9, 2021 
February 8, 2022 

May 10, 2022
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE CHART 
Board of Directors 9/8/20 11/10/20 2/9/21 5/11/21 
Rob Allen P P P P 
Pegi Ard P A P A 
Michele Bassi P P P P 
Claire Biancalana P P P P 
Owen Brown P P P P 
Linda Burroughs P P P P 
Ceil Cirillo P P P P 
David Heald A P P P 
Matt Huffaker P P P P 
Amy Lehman P P P A 
Kelly Nesheim P P P P 
Amy Newell P P P P 
Ed Newman P P P P 
Bradley Olin P P P A 
Erica Ow P P A P 
June Padilla Ponce P P P P 
Patty Quillin P P P P 
Maria Esther Rodriguez P A A P 
Gun Ruder P P P P  
Karen Semingson P P P P 
Rachael Spencer P P P P 
Trevor Strudley P P P P 
Kate Terrell A P P P 
Julie Thiebaut P P P P 
Rachel Wedeen P P P P 
Kathleen Welch P P P P 
Matt Wetstein P P P P 
Kristin Wilson A A A P 
Donna Ziel P P P P 

 
P=Present, A=Absent, N/A=Not applicable, not on the Board at the time. Based on Board of Director’s meeting minutes. 
Please contact Cabrillo College Foundation if you believe this chart is in error. 

4



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  September 8, 2021  
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Kate Terrell  
 
SUBJECT: 2021 Women’s Educational Success (WES) 
 
 

 WES grants are a critical resource for faculty on campus, empowering them to send a lifeline to a 
struggling student. With today's current financial instability, these grants will be relied on more 
than ever to keep deserving students in school. 
 

This year a total of $100,000 will be given out to students in need at Cabrillo through the WES 
program—the most WES has ever awarded.  
 
WES COMMITTEE (BEST FRIENDS): 

• Tonée Picard and Mary Culley are co-chairs for the 2021 WES Campaign  
• New to the committee this year: Shannon Brady, Kathryn Cowan, Cynthia FitzGerald, Amy 

Ivey, Chris Maffia, Martina O’Sullivan and Gail Pellerin 
• 2021 Best Friends: Shannon Brady, Sue Broadston, Lynette Cleland, Cathy Conway, Freny 

Cooper, Kathryn Cowan, Cynthia Druley, Cynthia FitzGerald, Corrine Flanagan, Peggy Flynn, 
Pam Goodman, Amy Ivey, Kathleen Jones, Janet Krassow, Chris Maffia, Angie McClellan, 
Martina O’Sullivan, Mara Palandrani, Gail Pellerin, Carolyn Parham, Patty Quillin, Karen 
Semingson, Bunny Tavares, Kate Terrell, Karri White, Kristin Wilson, Donna Ziel 
 

EVENT: 
• Although we had originally planned to host our WES event in person this year, we pivoted to 

an online event due to concerns over the Delta variant. While we are disappointed that we 
will not get to see our supporters in person, we look forward to creating a meaningful virtual 
event for our WES donors. We have been working hard to notify our donors of this change. 

• The virtual WES event will be held on Friday, September 10, 2021 from 12:00 – 1:00pm via 
Zoom. We are delivering boxed lunches prepared by our culinary students to donors living 
locally. 

 

2021 CAMPAIGN: 
• The WES Committee, now consisting of 27 Best Friends, recently sent out personalized WES 

invitations to nearly 1,700 potential donors. 
• Thanks to a generous grant of $20,000 from the Sharanam Foundation and the Wedeen 

Hammer Locatelli Group at Morgan Stanley, donations of $250 or more will be matched!  
• As of September 8th, $180,000 has been received for the 2021 WES campaign and any 

donations made through December 31, 2021 will be counted toward our current campaign.  

5



 
 

[Type here] 
 

For more information contact: Eileen Hill, Executive Director, 831-479-6338 or eihill@cabrillo.edu 

“I am so appreciative of being a recipient of the WES grant. I am 
currently almost halfway through my second semester in the Nursing 
Program. 
 
The money I received, during my first semester, helped me pay for 
software that allows me to identify abnormal heart and lung sounds 
on my patients out in the field. Without the money at that time, I 
would have been unqualified to visit patients in the hospital with the 
rest of my cohort. I am very grateful.” 

-Alexis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This grant helped me pay for classes and textbooks I could not 
afford since I did not have the finances to pay for my education. It 
helped me continue studying without having to take a break and 
now I am close to graduating and transferring, which has been a 
dream of mine since I was little.  
 
I can’t thank you enough and the Women’s Educational Success 
grant.  
 
–Stephanie 

I was awarded the WES grant and it was extremely helpful at the 
time. I have graduated from ultrasound program and I am now 
working for Stanford Hospital. 
 
I am very grateful for your support, thank you. 
 
-Yelena 
 

Women’s Educational Success (WES) Grant Recipients 

 

6



New Board Members 

 

Karen Cogswell - Having survived 7.5 LONG years on the East Coast, Karen 
and her husband remodeled a house in Aptos and are thrilled to be back in 
Santa Cruz County for good!   

Karen served on the Cabrillo Foundation Board from 2002 until 2010. Having 
been one of the founding members of Women’s Educational Success and 
then serving on the President’s Circle, she found the Foundation Board work 
to be a rewarding way to do even more for Cabrillo.  Karen was fortunate to 
have parents who put her through college, so any way she can help enable 
other students realize their educational goals is vital for her. 

Karen was in the mortgage industry here in Santa Cruz for 25 years, 12 of 
which owning her own company, Network Mortgage.  She has also served on 
the boards of the Housing Authority of Santa Cruz County, Friends of Long 
Marine Laboratories, El Pajaro Community Development Corporation and the 
Santa Cruz Community Foundation. 

 
 

Kathryn Cowan - Kathryn Cowan taught in the English department of 
Cabrillo College for 29 years. From 1990 to 1993, at the request of Bob 
Swenson, she began working with him to expand the Foundation Board. In 
this way she was honored to work with notable community members 
including Les Ley, Bill Locke-Padden, Fred McPherson, Helen Palmer, and Hal 
Hyde. 

Kathryn and her late husband Paul Shephard joined the Heritage Club early 
on. When Paul graduated from Cabrillo, Kathy established their first 
scholarship fund in his name. When he died in 2012 Kathryn chose to enlarge 
the fund which, she believes, is the best way to honor his memory. 

Prior to assuming her faculty position at Cabrillo, Kathryn taught at St. Louis 
University, Forest Park Community College in St. Louis, and was a member of 
the founding faculty of Shelby State Community College in Memphis.  

At UC Santa Cruz she did an institutional study at Oakes College for J. 
Herman Blake and later served as director of Major Gifts and Scholarships for 

University Advancement.  

Since her retirement from Cabrillo, Kathryn has served on the board of Grey Bears, and currently teaches memoir 
writing courses for the city of Santa Cruz Senior Activities Program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
7



Dr. Paul Nelson De La Cerda was hired in June to serve as the Assistant 
Superintendent/Vice President of Instruction for Cabrillo College. 

Dr. De La Cerda’s previous leadership roles include Dean of Instruction 
and Advancement at East Los Angeles College; Dean of Academic 
Affairs and Corporate Partnerships at LA Southwest College; Classified 
Director of the Small Business Development Center at College of the 
Canyons; and Project Director of National Science Foundation (NSF-
LSAMP) Minority Student Support Programs at Oklahoma State 
University. He has taught in various community colleges online and 
on-campus in math, science, business, leadership development, and 
entrepreneurship. Prior to beginning his profession in post-secondary 
leadership, Dr. De La Cerda worked in the non-profit, corporate, and 

government sectors developing partnerships to help underserved communities locally and statewide. He has 
overseen various multi-million Federal and State funded grant programs and endowments and his 
administrative portfolio includes building K-18 partnerships, leading equity and inclusion programs, and 
oversight of personnel, consultants, operations, and program infrastructure. Dr. De La Cerda is a collaborative, 
equity-minded leader who works effectively with college constituent groups as well as businesses and 
community-based partners. 

Dr. De La Cerda is a native of California and began his own college career at College of the Canyons. He went on 
to earn his Bachelor of Science in Engineering and Master’s in Business Administration at Oklahoma State 
University. He is a distinguished leadership fellow of the American Association of Community College’s National 
Community College Hispanic Council and serves as the Western Regional Chair. He possesses an Executive 
Leadership Certificate from Darden at University of Virginia and received his Doctorate in Organizational Change 
and Educational Leadership from the University of Southern California. His family is committed to education, 
engaged with many community organizations, and loves to travel and enjoy everything the beautiful State of 
California has to offer. 

 

Cory Ray – Cory grew up in the Santa Cruz area and while travel is 
an important part of her and her family’s life (a husband and two 
daughters) Santa Cruz has always been and will always be home. 
After attending Cabrillo College and Sonoma State University, she 
worked for National Semiconductor in Santa Clara. Cory shifted her 
career into multi-family residential ownership and management as 
she and her husband developed apartment projects in Santa Cruz 
County.  She continues to oversee the family-owned properties and 
works with her husband in new development. 

 Over the course of her career, her varied interests and skills led her 
to numerous volunteer positions. She is involved with, and an 
advocate for the developmentally disabled community in a variety 

of capacities, including having served as chairperson of a state oversight committee and currently as a member 
of Camphill Communities California Board. In the past, she served as the chairperson of the Strategic Planning 
Committee within the York School Board of Trustees and was the President of the Gateway School Board of 
Trustees. 

Cory strongly believes in the power of stable living conditions to drive economic opportunity for vulnerable 
populations. She is a passionate advocate for an increased housing supply throughout the county. She believes 
in education as an important path to a better life. She and her husband are supporters of Cabrillo College and 
she looks forward to being a part of the Cabrillo Foundation Board. 

8



 

Dan Rothwell – J. Dan Rothwell is the retired chair of the Communication 
Studies Department at Cabrillo College after 30 years heading the 
department. He has a B.A. in American History from the University of 
Portland (Oregon), an M.A. in Rhetoric and Public Address, and a Ph.D. in 
Communication Theory and Social Influence. His M.A. and Ph.D. are both 
from the University of Oregon. He is the author of five books: In Mixed 
Company: Communicating in Small Groups and Teams, In the Company of 
Others: An Introduction to Communication, Telling It Like It Isn’t: Language 
Misuse and Malpractice, Interpersonal Communication: Influences and 
Alternatives (with James Costigan), and Practically Speaking. He is also 
working on a sixth textbook, with his colleague and friend Michelle Waters, 
on business communication, to be published by Oxford University Press. 

During his extensive teaching career, Dr. Rothwell received more than two 
dozen teaching awards, including the Ernest L. Boyer International Award 

for Excellence in Teaching, Learning, and Technology conferred by the Center for the Advancement of Teaching 
and Learning, Florida State College, and the National Council of Instructional Administrators; the Cabrillo College 
“Innovative Teacher of the Year” award; the National Communication Association “Community College Educator 
of the Year” award; an official resolution by the California State Senate acknowledging Dr. Rothwell’s excellence 
in teaching; and the “Master Teacher” award from the Western States Communication Association. 

Finally, Dr. Rothwell’s public speaking book, Practically Speaking, received the national Textbook Excellence 
Award from the Textbook and Academic Authors Association. Having never achieved one of his early goals in 
life—to be a Hall of Fame major league baseball pitcher—this, and his teaching awards, will have to partially 
compensate for his lifelong disappointment. 

 

9



Cabrillo College Foundation Board
2020-21 Terms of Office

Effective July 1, 2020      
Name                          Community Director/

College Representative
Current Term Current Term 

Expires June 30
Final Term 

Expires June 30

1 Claire Biancalana Community Director 2nd 2022 2022
2 Ceil Cirillo Community Director 2nd 2022 2022
3 Kelly Nesheim Community Director 2nd 2022 2022
4 Patty Quillin Community Director 2nd 2023 2023
5 Maria Esther Rodriguez Community Director 2nd 2023 2023
6 Gun Ruder Community Director 2nd 2023 2023
7 Kate Terrell Community Director 2nd 2024 2024
8 Rob Allen Community Director 1st 2022 2025
9 Karen Semingson Community Director 1st 2022 2025

10 Rachel Wedeen Community Director 1st 2022 2025
11 Pegi Ard Community Director 1st 2023 2026
12 Michele Bassi Community Director 1st 2023 2026
13 Matt Huffaker Community Director 1st 2023 2026
14 Ed Newman Community Director 1st 2023 2026
15 Erica Ow Community Director 1st 2024 2027
16 Trevor Strudley Community Director 1st 2024 2027
17 Julie Thiebaut Community Director 1st 2024 2027
18 Karen Cogswell Community Director initial 2022 2028
19 Kathy Cowan Community Director initial 2022 2028
20 Cory Ray Community Director initial 2022 2028

21 Matt Wetstein President N/A N/A N/A
22 Amy Lehman Vice President N/A N/A N/A
23 Bradley Olin Vice President N/A N/A N/A
24 Paul De La Cerda Vice President N/A N/A N/A
25 Kristin Wilson Faculty 1st 2022 N/A
26 Rachael Spencer Trustee 2nd 2021 N/A
27 Donna Ziel Trustee 2nd 2023 N/A
28 Dan Rothwell Trustee 1st 2024 N/A

College Representatives

Board nominates and approves all members. Initial appointments are one-year term.  Subsequent appointments 
are three-year terms.  Community Directors may serve a maximum of seven years.  Past Presidents serve 
additional bonus year beyond regular term limit. All appointments end June 30, of expiration year.

Eight (8) of the Directors shall be representatives of Cabrillo College, at least one (1) of whom shall be a full-time 
faculty member of Cabrillo College. The College’s Superintendent/President, three (3) Vice Presidents, and three 
(3) College Trustees will be selected to serve on the Foundation Board.

Cabrillo College Representatives shall hold office for three (3) years, except in the event of an earlier termination 
of any such Director's status as a representative of the College. In that event, such a Director's term of office shall 
end at the same time as that Director ceases to be a College representative. There is no limit on the number of 
consecutive three-year terms a Director who is a representative of Cabrillo College may serve.

10



Cabrillo College Foundation Background and Mission 

The Cabrillo College Foundation is a nonprofit organization established in 1962 to raise 
private donations for the support of Cabrillo programs. Private support is used for student 
scholarships, research and educational programs, faculty and departmental support, facilities, 
and equipment. Local citizens, college staff, faculty and Cabrillo trustees serve on the 30-
member foundation board, representing all geographic areas of Santa Cruz County.  

The Cabrillo College Foundation’s mission is to operate for the advancement of education; to 
solicit and raise money for scholarships, facilities, equipment, research and education projects; to 
improve faculty teaching competence; to provide departmental support; and to otherwise 
provide aid supplementary to public tax dollars for the support and benefit of Cabrillo College. 

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

Board of Directors 

President’s Circle 

Finance and Investment Program and Development Committees 

Legacy Giving 

Audit 
 

Executive Foundation Staff 

Cabrillo Advancement 
Program (CAP) 

Faculty Grants Scholarships Women’s Educational 
Success (WES) 

Nominating 

11



Updated August 24, 2016 

Cabrillo College Foundation 
Brown Act and Public Participation at Meetings Policy  

The Brown Act provides opportunities for members of the general public to observe and comment on the 
public business of the CCF that is conducted by the Board of CCF or its standing committees, as required 
by the Brown Act. The Board of Directors and the Executive, Finance, and Audit committees are 
considered Brown Act bodies.  

Opportunity for public comment at meetings: 
There will be opportunities at each regular meeting for the general public to comment on items on the 
agenda and items not on the agenda that are within the purview of the CCF. No action may be taken on 
non-agenda items. 

Public comment at special meetings is limited to items on the agenda. 

Unless otherwise determined by the Chair, a member of the public is limited to three minutes when 
addressing the CCF Board of Directors and committees which are Brown Act bodies.  

General rules regarding meetings: 
• A regular meeting must be noticed by an agenda posted at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.

The agenda must be publicly accessible 24 hours per day. Internet posting of the agenda is also
required if the entity has a web site.

• A special meeting must be noticed by an agenda posted at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.
No items can be added to a special meeting agenda. Notice must be given to news organizations who
have requested such notice.

• An emergency meeting must be specially noticed. Only “emergencies” as defined in the Brown Act
are subject to this provision.

Closed sessions are permitted under a narrow set of circumstances.  They must be noticed as a closed 
session on the agenda, and any final “action taken” must be reported out to the public. Closed sessions 
are permitted for: 

1.Personnel matters  (discipline, dismissal, evaluations, and other confidential employee matters)
2.Pending litigation  (this includes actual litigation and threatened litigation)
3.Real estate negotiations
4.Labor negotiations (this includes salary negotiations)
5.Threat to public facilities or services

• Public records/writings distributed to board members less than 72 hours before a regular meeting must
be made available to the public at the time of distribution to the board. Such public records will be
available at the CCF office or other location described on the agenda.

• Brown Act bodies are prohibited from taking action on items not appearing on the posted agenda.
There are, however, exceptions. For example, if the body, at a regular meeting, makes findings to
add the item to the agenda:  By a 2/3 vote or, if less than 2/3 of the body are present, by a unanimous
vote, that action needs to be taken immediately and the need to take action occurred after posting the
agenda for a regular meeting.

12



C A L I F O R N I A  C O M M U N I T Y  C O L L E G E S

FAST FACTS 2021
COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE LEAGUE
OF CALIFORNIA

S T U D E N T  E N R O L L M E N T 
B Y  I N S T I T U T I O N  1 9 - 2 0 ’

CCC 2,324,759
FTE; Credit 1,091,908
FTE; Non-Credit 56,910
CSU 481,929
UC 285,216
Private 379,313

D E G R E E S  A N D 
C E R T I F I C A T E S 
A W A R D E D  1 9 - 2 0 ’

AS-T 29,696
A A-T 38,301
A A 88,873
AS 39,221
Cer t f icate 6-18 4,972
Cer t f icate 18-30 24,394
Cer t f icate 30-60 69,523
Cer t f icate 60+ 669
Baccalaureate Degrees 256

N U M B E R  O F  S T U D E N T 
T R A N S F E R S  T O  F O U R -
Y E A R  P U B L I C  A N D  P R I V A T E 
I N S T I T U T I O N S  1 8 - 1 9 ’

CC - UC 19,739
CC - CSU 54,839
CC- CA Priv 6,813
CC- Other Priv 14,784

S T U D E N T  E N R O L L M E N T 
S T A T U S  1 9 - 2 0 ’

Full-Time 29.36%
Par t-Time 61.49%
Noncredit 9.14%

F U N D S  P E R  F T E S 

1 9 - 2 0 ’ 2 0 - 2 1 ’
K-12 Ed  $12,118.00  $12,246.00 
CCC  $9,316.00  $9,561.00 
CSU  $19,467.00  $18,019.00 
UC  $33,070.00  $31,272.00

F I N A N C I A L  A I D 
S U M M A R Y  R E P O R T

S T U D E N T 
C O U N T

California College 
Promise Grant 942,271

Other 490,993

Grants Total 1,433,264

C A L I F O R N I A  C O M M U N I T Y  C O L L E G E S  F A S T  F A C T S  2 0 2 1

C A L I F O R N I A  C O M M U N I T Y  C O L L E G E S

116 colleges, 73 districts, & 78 off-campus centers

C S U s

23 colleges

U C s

10 colleges

13



C C C s  E D U C A T E  C A L I F O R N I A ’ S  F R O N T L I N E  E S S E N T I A L  W O R K E R S

California Community Colleges have demonstrated signif icant value to the state by 

training the essential workers to our COVID-19 response. In 2019-20 our colleges 

awarded 9,886 cer tif icates and degrees to emergency medical technicians, nurses,  

and respirator y care professionals. In the last f ive years, our institutions awarded 

52,188 cer tif icates and degrees in these three critical health f ields.

Community College League of California 
2017 O Street  /   Sacramento, CA 95811 
Phone: (916) 444-8641  /   Fax: (916) 444-2954 
Email:  cclc@ccleague.org  /   Website: ccleague.org

COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE LEAGUE
OF CALIFORNIA

Female: 1,265,335  /  54.43 % Male: 1,024,513  /  44.07 %

Non-identif ying: 1,172  /  0.05 % Unknown: 33,739  /  1.45 %

C C C  S T U D E N T S  B Y  G E N D E R  1 9 - 2 0 ’  

C C C  S T U D E N T S  B Y  A G E  1 9 - 2 0 ’

<19 718,147 30.89 %
20-24 655,331 28.19 %
25-29 305,792 13.15 %
30-34 180,089 7.75 %
35-39 122,832 5.28 %
40-49 154,567 6.65 %
>50 187,490 8.06 %
Unknown 511 0.02%

C C C  S T U D E N T S  B Y  E T H N I C I T Y  1 9 - 2 0 ’

African-American 129,739 5.58%
American Indian/
Alaskan Native 8,068 0.35%

Asian 264,520 11.38%
Filipino 65,068 2.80%
Hispanic 1,070,365 46.04%
Multi-Ethnicity 88,630 3.81%
Pacif ic Islander 9,286 0.40%
Unknown 140,612 6.05%
White 548,584 23.60%

M E D I A N  C R E D I T  S E S S I O N  :  2 5   40.4% 

OF CCC STUDENTS ARE 
FIRST GENERATION

14



0 20 40 60 80 100 120

SJSU:119

CSUMB:110

CSUSF:35

0 30 60 90 120 150

UCSC:142

UC Davis:33

UCLA:27

UC Berkeley:23

2019-2020
Top Transfer Destinations

Fall 2019 Enrollment

Part-time:68%

Full-time:32%

Enrollment Status

Male:45%

Female:54%

Decline 
to state:1%

Gender

Asian:3%

Multiple
Ethnicity:5% 

Latino:46%

Filipino:<1%

White
Non-Hispanic:41%

American Indian/
Alaskan Native:<1%

Black 
Non-Hispanic:1%

Pacific
Islander:<1%

Decline
to state:3%

Ethnicity

In-State:94%

Not Reported:<1%

International:<1%

AB540:3%

Out-of-State:2%

Residency

3

2019-2020 
Academic Year

Honorable Mention 941
 High Honors 411
 Honors 482

HONORS

AWARDS

 Total Graduates 1,453
 Total Awards 2,546
 AA Degrees 948
 AS Degrees 487
 AAT Degrees 175
 AST Degrees 93
	 Skills	Certificates	 534
	 Certificates	of	 309
	 Achievement	

Planning	&	Research

15



• Audit preparation 

• Transitioning and adjusting in-person plans 

• Scholarship Administration 

• 2020-21 Final Reporting 
- Raised $6,502,343, which includes $3.7M in endowed  

permanent support (the most raised in a year!)  
- 1,496 donors, including 343 new donors  
- 100% Board member giving 
- Put $1.4M in the hands of students through our scholarships 

 

 

  
  

  

 
 

 

  

 

  

• President’s Circle:  first committee meeting was August 24 

• Women’s Educational Success:  over $100,000 raised, 1700 invitations  
to WES Luncheon have been mailed, $100,000 to award this year 

• Proposals: Monterey Peninsula Foundation $81,500 for homeless  
student support, PAMF/Sutter $17,500 for Allied Health  

• Scholarships:  establishing 3 new scholarships, stewardship  
for over 200 existing scholarship donors  

 

Fundraising 

Executive Director Report: September 2021 

Administration 

 

• Women’s Educational Success Celebration (virtual):  
September 10, 12:00 – 1:00 pm 

• Name Exploration Input Session for Foundation Donors (virtual):   
October 6, 5:30 – 6:30 pm  

• President’s Circle – Back to School event ($1,000+ virtual):   
October 14, 5:30 – 6:30 pm 

• Board of Directors Meeting:   
November 9, 12:00 – 2:00 pm  

• Student Veterans BBQ:   
November 11, 12:00 – 2:00 pm  

 

 

Upcoming Events 

16



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 09 14\Drafts\Fundraising Totals 2020-21 0.docx 

 
 

DATE: 
 
TO: 

September 8, 2021 
 

Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Eileen Hill 

 
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 
Outright Gifts 

 
$   5,992,343 

 Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts        $      510,000  
 Total $ 6,502,343 

2020-21 Fundraising Goal for Outright and Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $     3,000,000 
Recorded Gifts 07-01-20 to 06-30-21: 
                 Anonymous (Tutoring)                  $      2,600,000 

    The Grove Foundation (Scholarship)                $        310,000 
     SD Trombetta Foundation (Peace Library, Internships & Scholarship)           $          300,000 

    Peter Weber & Victor Ruder (Fire Relief, Scholarships)                $          150,500 
     The Barbara Samper Foundation (CAP)                $          125,000 
     Colligan Family Charitable Fund (Scholarship)               $          105,000 

Richard & Theresa Crocker (Fire Relief, President’s Circle) $  101,500 
Paul & Pat Shirley (CAP & Scholarship) $          100,250 
Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County $          100,000 
Davidson Family Foundation (Scholarship) $          100,000 
Monterey Peninsula Foundation (Grant) $            90,000 
Estate of Hal Hyde (President’s Circle, CAP) $            82,000 
LAM Research Foundation (NetLab)  $   76,000 
Gitta Ryle (Scholarship)  $              60,013 
Pajaro Valley Community Health Trust (Scholarships)  $             54,200 
Joan Griffiths (Tutoring, WES, Nursing, Stroke Center, President’s Circle, $            53,157 
          Scholarship) 
Brian & Patti Herman (Fire Relief, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $ 50,562 
California College Pathways Fund (Guardian Scholars) $           40,000 
The Peggy & Jack Baskin Foundation (Fire Relief, WES & $ 38,000 
         Girls in Engineering) 
Claire Biancalana & William Kelsay (Fire Relief, President’s Circle,  $           26,538 
         Scholarship, WES, Athletics) 
Anonymous (Emergency Grants)  $            25,000 
Christopher Nutley (Scholarship)  $           25,000 
Sutter Health Palo Alto Medical Foundation (Allied Health, WES) $           22,500 
Rachel Wedeen (Fire Relief, WES, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $             20,800 
Anonymous (Scholarship) $            20,410 
Leestma Family Foundation/Little Flower Fund (Scholarship) $            20,000 
Julie Packard (WES & President’s Circle) $            20,000 
Miles & Rosanne Reiter (President’s Circle) $            20,000 
Craig Rowell & Corinda Ray (WES, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $            20,000 
Foundation for California Community Colleges (Scholarship) $            19,100 
Estate of Richard Lynde (Scholarship) $            17,421 
George & Diane Koenig (CAP, Scholarship & President’s Circle) $            17,206 
Patty Quillin & Reed Hastings (WES & President’s Circle) $            16,000 
     Gifts under $15,000 (1,464 of 1,496 total donors) $     1,256,686  
Total Outright Gifts $   5,992,343 
Total Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $        510,000 
     TOTAL $   6,502,343 
 

Notes:    1. For 2020-21, The Cabrillo College Foundation has been notified of two planned gifts. 
    2. The cumulative unbooked revocable planned gifts total is $26,305,000. 

17



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2021 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: 2020-21 Fundraising Targets 
 
 
The Board approved a $3M fundraising goal in outright and unbooked planned gifts.  The following 
is an outline of the specific fundraising targets for the year to reach $3M.  The $3M goal includes a 
target of $760,000 in endowed gifts and $500,000 in unbooked planned gifts.  Focusing some effort 
on legacy giving will help ensure the long-term health and sustainability of the Foundation. 
 

Amount Raised 
7/1/20 – 6/30/21 

2020-21 Target  

$451,843 $398,000  President’s Circle 
$0 $50,000  Annual Fund 
$207,754 $175,000  Women’s Educational Success 
$285,710 $150,000  Cabrillo Advancement Program (Endowed) 

$545,233 $500,000  Scholarships (Endowed) 

$1,098,030 $250,000  Scholarships (Nonendowed)  

$556,848 $477,000 Faculty/Department Support (Faculty Grants, Allied 
Health, Athletics, VAPA, etc.) 

$2,770,925 $250,000 Student Support Services (veterans, foster youth, 
tutoring, girls in engineering, etc.) 

$76,000 $250,000 Donor directed interests 
$510,000 $500,000  Unbooked Planned Gifts 
$6,502,343 $3,000,000  TOTAL 

 
  
 
 

 
 

 
 
  

18



 
 

24%
Faculty/Dept 

Support
$518,339

11%
Student Support Services

$241,65565%
Scholarships 
$1,383,716

Disbursements to Cabrillo College and Students
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Total: $2,143,710

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Faculty/Department Support  24% $518,339 
(Allied Health, Athletics, Faculty Grants, VAPA)   
   
Student Support Services 11% $241,655 
(Foster Youth, CAP, Children's Center, Peace Library)   
   
Scholarships 65% $1,383,716 

   
 TOTAL $2,143,710 

 

19



 
 

38%

37%

10%

6%

4%
3% 2%

2020-21 STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES
$241,655

Guardian Scholars $92,623

Cabrillo Advancement Program $89,869

Children's Center/Peace Library $24,578

Student Groups $13,433

Internships $9,011

Faculty/Staff Professional Development $8,309

Honors Program $3,832

23%

20%

17%

10%

9%

5%

4%

7%
3% 2%

2020-21 FACULTY AND DEPARTMENT SUPPORT
$518,339

Stroke Center $118,886

Faculty Grants $103,388

Natural & Applied Sciences $87,442

Allied Health $52,210

Athletics $44,993

Facilities $24,510

Multiple Funds $23,799

Visual, Applied, & Performing Arts $38,743

Faculty/Staff Fire Relief Grants $14,350

Business, English, Language Arts $10,018

 

 

20



 
 

 
 

 
 
DATE: 
 
TO: 

 
 
September 8, 2021 

 
Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Eileen Hill 

 
July 1, 2021 to September 2, 2021 
Outright Gifts 

 
$        199,987 

 Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts        $        150,000 
 Total $       349,987 

2021-22 Goal for Outright and Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $      3,000,000 
Recorded Gifts 07-01-21 to 09-02-21: 

Dan Rothwell & Marcy Wieland (President’s Circle,  $    11,359 
      Scholarship & WES) 
The Peggy & Jack Baskin Foundation (WES) $    10,000 
The Sharanam Foundation (WES) $      8,000 
Janet Heien (WES & President’s Circle) $      6,000 
Foundation for California Community Colleges (Scholarship) $      5,400 
Olivia Bodnar (Scholarship) $      5,060 
Patty McCord (WES) $      5,000 
Penelope Rich & William Hill (WES) $      5,000 
Santa Cruz Seaside Company (Scholarship) $      5,000 
New Leaf Community Markets (Children’s Center & Resource Spot) $      3,054   
Jack Farr (President’s Circle) $      3,000 
Gail Pellerin (Scholarship & WES) $      3,000 
Roberta Hunter & Donna Meyers (WES) $      2,500 
Mary Murphy (WES) $       2,500 
Amy Newell (WES) $      2,500 
Ever Loved, Inc. (Scholarship) $      2,062 
Eileen & Dave Hill (President’s Circle, WES, CAP,  $      2,052 
     Scholarship & Student Veterans) 
Eugene & Janice Corriden (Scholarship) $      2,000 
Kaiser Permanente Foundation Health Plan Inc. (WES) $      2,000 
Kathryn Shephard Cowan (President’s Circle & WES) $      2,000 
Susan Tappero (Scholarship) $      2,000 
Rotary Club of Santa Cruz (Scholarship) $      1,950 
Doug & Diane Deaver (President’s Circle) $      1,500 
Nancy Mead (Scholarship) $      1,500 
Thomas Thacher & Susan Nerton (WES) $      1,500 
     Gifts under $1,500 (469 of 494 total donors) $        106,550 
Total Outright Gifts $       199,987 
Total Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $        150,000 
     TOTAL $       349,987 
 
 

Notes:    1. For 2021-22, The Cabrillo College Foundation has been notified of one planned gift. 
    2. The cumulative unbooked revocable planned gifts total is $26,455,000. 
 

 

21



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2021 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: 2021-22 Fundraising Targets 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Board approved a $3M fundraising goal in outright and unbooked planned gifts. The following 
is an outline of the specific fundraising targets for the year to reach $3M.  The $3M goal includes a 
target of $850,000 in endowed gifts and $500,000 in unbooked planned gifts. Focusing efforts on 
endowed gifts and legacy giving will help ensure the long-term health and sustainability of the 
Foundation. 
 

Amount Raised 
7/1/21-9/02/21 

2021-22 Target  

$11,850 $430,000  President’s Circle 
$0 $50,000  Annual Fund 
$108,826 $175,000 Women’s Educational Success 
$215 $200,000  Cabrillo Advancement Program (Endowed) 

$23,685 $500,000  Scholarships (Endowed) 

$38,786 $250,000 Scholarships (Nonendowed)  

$16,225 $395,000  Faculty/Department Support (Faculty Grants, Allied 
Health, Athletics, VAPA, etc.) 

$400 $250,000 Student Support Services (foster youth, internships, 
tutoring, Veterans, etc.) 

$0 $250,000  Donor directed interests 
$150,000 $500,000 Unbooked Planned Gifts 

$349,987 $3,000,000  TOTAL 
 
 

 
 

 

22



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 09 14\Drafts\Net Assets Report By Year 2000-2021 Current

Total Net Assets highest level was $45,669,484 as of May 31, 2021
Endowed Net Assets highest level was $40,399,772 as of May 31, 2021

Endowed Historical Gifts highest level was $30,269,505 on July 31, 2021

Total Net Assets
$44,878,962

Endowed  
Net Assets

$40,053,845

Endowed 
Historical Gifts
$30,269,505

$5,000,000

$7,500,000

$10,000,000

$12,500,000

$15,000,000

$17,500,000

$20,000,000

$22,500,000

$25,000,000

$27,500,000

$30,000,000

$32,500,000

$35,000,000

$37,500,000

$40,000,000

$42,500,000

$45,000,000

$47,500,000

6/30/02 6/30/03 6/30/04 6/30/05 6/30/06 6/30/07 6/30/08 6/30/09 6/30/10 6/30/11 6/30/12 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/16 6/30/17 6/30/18 6/30/19 6/30/20 6/30/21 7/31/21

Cabrillo College Foundation
Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets, and Endowed Historical Gifts

June 30, 2002 to July 31, 2021

Total Net Assets Total Endowed Net Assets Endowed Historical Gifts

23



       

24



   

25



   

 

 

 

26



   

 

 

 
               

 

27



   

 

 

 

 

28



   

 

 

 

 
 

29



   

 

30



   

 

31



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 09 
14\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for June 30, 2021.doc 

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Condensed Narrative  

Updated August 31, 2021 
 

 
(1) Balance Sheet 
 

• Total Assets: 
Total assets of $47.6M are $10.4M over prior year primarily due to the increase in value 
of the assets in the investment accounts.  

 
• Receivables: 

Total pledges receivable are $243K less than prior year primarily due to an annual 
pledge payment of $300K.  
 

• Liabilities: 
Total Liabilities of $2.7M are $232K less than prior year.  Accounts payable balance was 
$59K less and all scholarship liabilities were lower than prior year. CAP Scholarship 
liabilities are lower than normal because there were no CAP recipients awarded this 
year.    
 

• Net Assets: 
Total net assets of $44.9M are $10.8 more than prior year.   

 
(2) Income Statement 
 

• Revenue: 
Total Revenue is $10.8 higher than prior year. Earned income as of June 30, 2021 is 
$8.2M compared to the prior year balance of $451K due to higher investment and fee 
income earned.  Contributed income of $6.1M is $3.0M higher than prior year.  
Restricted contributions were $2.9M more than prior year partially due to a $2.6M 
donation received this year. The PPP loan forgiveness of $103K added a boost to 
contributions this year as well. 
 

• Expenses: 
Total Expenses of $3.6M are $1.0M under prior year.  Primarily due to Program 
expenses which were $346K lower than prior year and scholarships which were $499K 
lower than prior year.  The prior year $499K difference can be attributed to CAP 
scholarships not being awarded in 20-21 and a decrease in student emergency grant 
payments compared to the prior year with the initial onset of the pandemic.  
 

• Surplus/Deficit: 
As of June 30, 2021, the Cabrillo College Foundation has a $10.7M surplus compared 
to prior year deficit of $1.1M.  
 
 
 

32



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 09 
14\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for June 30, 2021.doc 

(3) Operational Budget to Actual  
 

• Revenue: 
Operating revenue of $1.3M is $346K favorable vs budget. The endowment 
management fees are $188K favorable vs budget.  Contributed income was $45K 
favorable, despite suspending the Annual Fund Campaign.  President’s Circle had 
another incredible year; raising $94K more than budget.  The PPP loan forgiveness 
provided a boost of $103K. 
 

• Expenses: 
Operating expenses of $915K are $105K favorable vs projection primarily due to lower 
salaries, payroll taxes and benefits due to staffing pattern changes because of COVID. 
Annual Fund salaries were lower due to the suspension of the campaign and one 
regular part-time employee chose not to work from home when our office 
transitioned to working from home. There were savings by not holding in person 
events and lower than expected Accounting/Legal and Professional fees and 
uncollectible pledges.   
 

• Surplus/Deficit: 
The operating fund surplus is $393,301 prior to audit.  This number will be updated 
when the annual adjustments for the CalPERS liability and the Retiree Medical 
Insurance liability are calculated during the course of the audit.  Any surplus will be 
allocated to the Operating Reserve account to fulfill the goal of having 6 months of 
operating reserve. We have $509,995 in reserve pre-audit as of June 30, 2021.  This is 
94% of our 21-22 operating reserve goal of $541,266.   
 

        
 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



O:\President\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 09 

14\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for July 31, 2021.doc  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



O:\President\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 09 

14\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for July 31, 2021.doc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2021 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: Governing Document Review 
 
 
The Council for Advancement and Support of Education (CASE) recommends that the following 
governing documents are reviewed every three years. As an Auxiliary Organization of Cabrillo 
College, Administrative Procedure 3600 (AP3600) is the master governing document set forth from 
the Chancellor’s office that informs the governing documents. Following staff review, proposed 
revisions were sent to legal counsel for review to ensure compliance with all current laws and to 
confirm our policies align with Cabrillo College Board Policy and Administrative Procedure 3600 
(Auxiliary Organizations). 
 

• Articles of Incorporation 
o No changes  

• Master Agreement 
o Added missing items listed in AP3600 and sections from Aux Organization Manual 

Master Agreement Sample 
o Fine tuning for clarity and removed duplication  
o Update signatures of witnessing parties 
o Add the approved and amended date at the bottom of the document. 

• Bylaws 
o Remove the initial one year term for Board Members  
o Fine tuning for clarity and removed duplication  
o Add the approved and amended date at the bottom of the document. 

 
TIMELINE 
April 15:   Executive Committee first reading of proposed changes. Feedback to be given to 

Foundation by May 15 
May 15:   Governing Documents sent to legal counsel for review  
August 26:  Executive Committee approves governing documents 
September 14: Board of Directors approve governing documents 
October 4:  Cabrillo Trustees approve governing documents 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Approve Cabrillo College Foundation Bylaws and Master Agreement as amended. 

54



55



56



57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH1]: Attorney to check all 
references to Codes, etc.  

Commented [EES2R1]: Confirmed. 

Deleted: 

58



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH3]: Does not match Section 
listed in Articles of Incorp 

Commented [EES4R3]: 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) 
expressly references the section that is 

referred to in the Articles and appears to 

be a more specific explanation of the 

Foundation’s structure as an auxiliary 

organization. We could add 170(c)(2) but I 

recommend leaving the more specific cite 

in regardless. 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES5]: This language mirrors the 
language in AP 3600 

59



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

60



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH7]: Consult attorney if 
“Annual Meeting” call out is necessary 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES9R8]: No, it’s not. 

61



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

62



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

63



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

65



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

Commented [EES11]: This language is pulled 
from AP 3600. 

66



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

67



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

68



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

69



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

70



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commented [EES12]: This language does not 
appear to be included in AP 3600. 

Commented [EH13R12]: Remove 

71



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

72



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Commented [EH1]: More relevant information to Foundation’s 
mission, taken from Aux Org Manual Sample Master Agreement.  

73



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH2]: Not relevant to Foundation. 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH3]: Update to $24,821 – new valuation based 
on recent comps 

Deleted: 

74



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES8]: This language is from the Chancellor’s 
Office current template. 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES9]: The Chancellor’s Office template includes 
an automatic reverter to the District. That language does not 
appear to be inconsistent with the Foundation’s current Articles of 
Incorporation, however, a reverter is not required by law in the 
Agreement, so I just wanted to bring this issue to the Foundation’s 
attention for consideration. 

Commented [EH10R9]: Staff determined better to keep  

75



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Formatted: Left

Commented [EH11]: Per AP3600 this must be in Master 
Agreement. 

Commented [EES12]: This language is from the Chancellor’s 
Office template. 

Deleted: 

76



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: 

77



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Commented [EH14]: Added from Aux Manual Master 
Agreement sample 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

78



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  September 8, 2021   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Michele Bassi  
 
SUBJECT: President’s Circle Campaign 
 
 
2020-21 President’s Circle  
For 2020-21, President’s Circle raised $463,000! This is the most ever raised for the President’s Circle and 
a 9% increase over the previous year.  A total of 1,092 invitations were mailed to potential donors and 
committee members made follow-up calls to prospects. We had 22 new members join and 13 rejoining 
members increased their support. We have a 94% retention rate. 
 
2021-22 President’s Circle Committee 
The President’s Circle Kick-off Celebration was held on Tuesday, August 24 via Zoom. Vance Landis-Carey 
and Linda Burroughs are co-chairs of the 2021-22 President’s Circle Committee. Kathryn Cowan, Jim 
Emerson, Burt Rees and Paula Woods have agreed to join the committee this year.  
 
President’s Circle committee members are now working to review their prospect lists. Our fundraising 
goal for the 2021-22 Campaign is $465,000. 
 

 
President’s Circle Events 

Due to Covid-19, all events will be planned with an eye to safety and well-being of guests and staff. All events 
are subject to change. 

 
Virtual Back to School Celebration ($1,000+ donors)     October 2021 

President’s Holiday Party ($1,000+ donors)       Dec. 3, 2021 

Historical Presentation by Sandy Lydon ($1,000+)      April/May 2022 

President’s Plus Drive-Thru Picnic ($1,500+)       Summer 2022 

Winemaker’s Dinner at Sesnon House ($2,500+)      May 2022 

Dinner at the home of Vance Landis-Carey ($5,000+)     May/June 2022 

Feasting with Faculty ($10,000+)        Summer 2022 

Homemade Pizza Party at the home of Claire Biancalana and Bill Kelsay ($15,000+) Summer 2022 

 

 

79



 
 

 
  
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  September 8, 2021   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Gun Ruder 
 
SUBJECT: Faculty and Staff Grants 
 
 
Faculty and Staff Grants  
 
Cabrillo College Foundation has three grant programs to support Cabrillo College faculty:  

1. Faculty Grants for Student Success 
2. Crocker Endowment Grants  

• Crocker Nursing Endowment Grants 
• Crocker Dental Hygiene Endowment Grants 
• Crocker VAPA Endowment Grants 
• Crocker Campus-Wide Endowment Grants 

3. Engineering and Applied Science Endowment 
 
Grant recipients are selected through an annual proposal process. In October and November of 
each year, various committees meet to evaluate proposals and select grant recipients for each 
of the three grant programs. The Faculty Grants for Student Success selection committee is 
comprised of Foundation Board Members, Cabrillo Faculty and community members, who all 
review proposals, then meet to determine which projects receive funding. 
 
This year there is $110,955 available to award Cabrillo staff and faculty to enhance student 
learning and increase student success. Because of the extreme challenges of the past year, all 
2020 grant recipients were given extensions to use their funds. Unspent funding from 2020 is 
not included in this years’ grant cycle. 
 
Please notify Eileen or Caitlin if you are interested in serving on the committee to review 
proposals and select projects to award. 
 

80



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE:  September 8, 2021  
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 

FROM:  Rachael Spencer 
 

SUBJECT: Scholarship Program 
 
 

While Cabrillo is affordable, rising textbook prices and the high cost of living in Santa Cruz County 
continue to be huge financial obstacles for our students. Cabrillo is fortunate to have a robust 
scholarship program that helps alleviate some of these burdens, allowing our students reach their 
educational goals. Despite the uncertainty surrounding COVID-19, scholarships help students plan 
for their future — knowing that they have financial support can encourage them to stay enrolled 
and gives them hope during challenging times. 
 

SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 
• During the 2020-21 fiscal year, we awarded nearly $1.3 million in scholarships to 1297 

students. 
• Scholarship recipients were notified of their awards at the end of May and will receive their 

funds in the next two weeks, provided they meet their scholarship’s criteria. 
 

SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE 
• Committee members: Rachael Spencer (Chair), Claire Biancalana, Jess Brown, Ceil Cirillo, 

Virginia Coe, Karen Cogswell, Kathryn Cowan, Linda Downing, Jan Furman, Rich Hart, Adele 
Miller, Corinne Miller, Cori Ray, Julie Thiebaut, Rachel Wedeen and Jill Wilson 

• Committee members serve as community ambassadors for our scholarship program. 
 

DONOR COMMUNICATIONS 
• In September, over 200 of our scholarship donors will receive a thank you card that includes 

the name(s) of their 2021 scholarship recipient(s). 
• In December, over 400 scholarship donors will receive our annual year-end scholarship 

solicitation. This mailing includes thank you letters from scholarship recipients and personal, 
hand-written notes from our scholarship committee members. 

 

EVENTS 
• Zoom Event: Colligan Family Scholarship for First Generation Cabrillo Students 

o In July we hosted a small Zoom event to celebrate some of the Colligan Family 
Scholarship recipients and introduce the students to Bud and Rebecca Colligan. 11 
students joined us for the call and spoke about being first generation students and 
the impact of this generous scholarship, including one Cabrillo Alum who received 
this scholarship in 2019. He has transferred to Cal Poly to study Electrical 
Engineering. 

• Scholarship Committee Meeting 
o November TBD: we will discuss our year-end mailing and personalizing letters. 

 

81



 

82



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2021 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: Student Veterans Endowment 
 
 
Background 
The Cabrillo College Veterans Information Center (VIC) provides resources and information for 
those who have served in the military as well as their dependents. All military service veterans are 
welcome and supported at the VIC. Last year, Cabrillo student veterans launched a permanent 
endowment fund to help fellow student veterans in need, for generations to come.  A committee 
comprised of student veterans, veterans, staff, and volunteers called the Quick Reaction Force, was 
formed to raise funds for the SVE annually. The goal of the QRF was to raise $10,000 in its first year 
and a total of $19,239 was raised last year! 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of SVE is to allow student veterans to access quick response funds if and when they 
experience unforeseen hardships while transitioning to civilian life. We anticipate that quick 
response funds will be awarded within two weeks of request and will fortify students experiencing 
hardship.  
 
Last spring, two student veterans who were experiencing financial difficulties received the first 
Student Veterans Endowment emergency grants--allowing these student veterans to stay in school 
and graduate last semester. 
 
2021 SVE Campaign 
The Student Veterans Campaign is starting with the kick off meeting scheduled for September 27th. 
QRF committee members are being recruited to help raise funds for the SVE. The Veterans BBQ will 
be held on Veterans Day on November 11th.  
 
Please let Eileen know if you are interested in serving on the committee to support student 
veterans at Cabrillo College.  
 
 

83



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
  
DATE:   August 8, 2021 
 
TO:    Board of Directors 
 
FROM:   Nancy Machado 
 
SUBJECT:  2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation Audit Schedule 
 
The following is a projection for the 2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation audit process: 
 
June 11, 2021 Auditor meets via Zoom with Audit Committee to review how 

the audit will be conducted. Terri Montgomery of Audit firm will 
attend meeting. 

Week of  
August 16, 2021 Cabrillo College Foundation remote audit. 
 
September 6, 2021 Foundation receives proposed audit adjustments for review by 

Nancy Machado, Lynn Brisson, CPA and Pegi Ard, Foundation 
CFO. 

 
September 16, 2021 Foundation receives audit draft for review by Nancy Machado, 

Eileen Hill, and Pegi Ard, Foundation CFO. 
 
October 7, 2021 Audit Committee meets to review/accept audit draft.  

Representative(s) of Audit firm will attend meeting. 
 
October 21, 2021  Executive Committee receives e-mail audit draft for review prior 

to Executive Committee meeting. 
 
October 28, 2021 Executive Committee receives recommended audit draft   
 for review and acceptance.  
 
November 1, 2021 Cabrillo College Foundation staff e-mails Audit Committee 

members a red-line draft Audit so they are made aware of any 
changes made to the Audit Report after the Executive 
Committee meeting. 

 
November 9, 2021 Cabrillo College Foundation Board of Directors meet to accept 

audit.  Representative(s) of audit firm will attend meeting. 

84



Nancy Machado
Accounting and Human 
Resources  Manager
namachad@cabrillo.edu

Eileen Hill
Executive Director
eihill@cabrillo.edu

Kate Staveland
Operations and Communications 
Director 
kastavel@cabrillo.edu

Cabrillo College Foundation Staff

Caitlin Bonura
Development Officer
cabonura@cabrillo.edu

Alia Fintz
Foundation Assistant
alfintz@cabrillo.edu

Lori  Hood
Events Coordinator
Executive Assistant 

lohood@cabrillo.edu

Georgia West
Accounting and Human     
Resources Specialist
gewest@cabrillo.edu

Shannon Moseley    
Accounting Specialist

shmosele@cabrillo.edu

85



EXCLUSIVE EVENTS 
FOR PRESIDENT’S 
CIRCLE MEMBERS 
 
Virtual Back to School 
Celebration 
$1,000 + Members 
October 14, 2021  
 
Sandy Lydon Virtual  
History 
$1,000 + Members 
April/May 2022 TBD 
 
Winemakers Dinner 
Sesnon House 
$2,500+ Members 
May 2022 TBD 
 
Dinner Party at the 
home of Vance Landis-
Carey and Robert Carey 
$5,000 + Members 
May/June 2022 TBD 
 
Drive-Thru Picnic 
Sesnon House 
$1,500+ Members 
Summer 2022 TBD 
 
Feasting with Faculty 
$10,000+ Members 
Summer 2022 TBD 
 
Homemade Pizza Party 
at the home of Claire 
Biancalana and Bill 
Kelsay 
$15,000+ Members 
Summer 2022 TBD 
 
*Due to Covid-19, all 
events will be planned 
with an eye for safety and 
well-being of guests and 
staff. All events are subject 
to change. 
 
 

EVENT DATES 
 
Colligan Family 
Scholarship Ceremony 
July 20, 2021 
10:00 am 
 
Heritage Club Lunch 
November 2021 TBD 
 
President’s Holiday  
Party 
December 3, 2021 
 
Faculty and Staff Grants 
Awards 
January 2022 TBD 
4:00 pm – 5:00 pm 
 

2021-22 Cabrillo College Foundation Committee Meetings and Events 
Updated 8/23/2021 

 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 
Tuesdays, 12:00-2:00 pm 
New Member Orientation 
September 14, 2021 
11:00 am-12:00 pm 
 
Meetings: 
September 14, 2021 
November 9, 2021 
February 8, 2022 
May 10, 2022 
 

AUDIT 
10:00-11:00 am 
October 2021 TBD 
May 2022 TBD 
 
EXECUTIVE 
9:00-10:00 am 
August 26, 2021 (Zoom) 
(9:00 – 10:30 am) 
October 28, 2021 
January 27, 2022 
April 21, 2022 

 
FINANCE AND  
INVESTMENT 
9:00-10:00 am 
August 19, 2021 (Zoom) 
October 14, 2021  
January 13, 2022  
(9:00 – 10:30 am) 
March 31, 2022 
(9:00 – 10:30 am) 

FACULTY GRANTS 
November 2021 TBD 
 

NOMINATING 
Dec 2021/Jan 2022 TBD 
 

PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE 
August 24, 2021  
5:30 – 7:30 pm  
(kick-off party) 
 
September 22, 2021  
9:00 am – 12:00 pm  
(signing pick up) 
 
March 2022 TBD  
5:30 pm – 7:00 pm  
(wrap-up party) 
 

WOMEN’S 
EDUCATIONAL 
SUCCESS (WES) 
September 10, 2021  
12:00 pm – 1:00 pm 
(Luncheon) 
 

SCHOLARSHIP 
November 2021 TBD 
 

CABRILLO 
ADVANCEMENT 

PROGRAM 
February 2022 TBD 
May 2022 TBD 
10:00 am

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

86



 
2021-22 Cabrillo College Foundation Committee Roster – Updated 9/7/2021 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rob Allen 
Pegi Ard, CFO 
Michele Bassi 
Claire Biancalana, Past President 
Ceil Cirillo 
Karen Cogswell 
Kathryn Cowan 
Paul De La Cerda, VP Instruction 
Matt Huffaker 
Amy Lehman,  VP Student 
Services 
Kelly Nesheim 
Ed Newman 
Bradley Olin, VP Admin.  
   Services, Asst. Treasurer 
Erica Ow 
Patty Quillin, Vice President 
Cory Ray 
Maria Esther Rodriguez 
Dan Rothwell, College Trustee 
Gun Ruder, President 
Karen Semingson 
Rachael Spencer, College  
   Trustee 
Trevor Strudley 
Kate Terrell 
Julie Thiebaut 
Rachel Wedeen, Secretary 
Matt Wetstein, Asst. Secretary, 
   CC President 
Kristin Wilson, Faculty 
  Representative 
Donna Ziel, College Trustee 
 

AUDIT 
Chair: Karen Semingson 
Carrie Birkhofer 
David Heald 
Barbara Scherer 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 
 

EXECUTIVE 
Pegi Ard, CFO 
Claire Biancalana, Past President 
Patty Quillin, Vice President 
Gun Ruder, President 
Rachael Spencer 
Rachel Wedeen 
Matt Wetstein, CC President 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado

FINANCE & INVESTMENTS 
CFO: Pegi Ard 
Owen Brown 
Karen Cogswell 
Marshall Delk 
David Heald 
Michael W. Machado 
Kelly Nesheim 
Gun Ruder 
Steve Snodgrass 
Trevor Strudley 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 
 

CABRILLO ADVANCEMENT 
PROGRAM (CAP) 
Chair: Carrie Birkhofer 
Eva Acosta 
Rob Allen 
Enrique Buelna 
Sesario Escoto 
Leola Lapides 
Rachel Mayo 
June Padilla Ponce 
Maria Esther Rodriguez 
College Advisors: 
    Liz Dominguez  
   Michelle Donohue 
Staff: Eileen Hill, Caitlin Bonura 
 

FACULTY GRANTS 
Cherie Barkey 
Owen Brown 
Ted Burke 
Linda Burroughs 
Ceil Cirillo 
Les Forster 
Mary Gaukel 
Matt Huffaker 
Francisco Íñiguez 
Tobin Keller 
Amy Newell 
Gun Ruder 
David Schwartz 
Natalie Vanoli 
Staff: Eileen Hill, Caitlin Bonura 
 

NOMINATING 
Claire Biancalana 
Jess Brown 
Linda Burroughs 
Ceil Cirillo 
William Ow 
Gun Ruder 
Rachael Spencer 
Lead Staff: Eileen Hill 
 
PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE  
Co-chairs: 
  Linda Burroughs  
  Vance Landis-Carey 
Pegi Ard 
Jim Baker 
Pat Barton 
Michele Bassi 
Claire Biancalana 

Mary Blanchard 
Owen Brown 
Ted Burke 
Ceil Cirillo 
Karen Cogswell 
Kathryn Cowan 
Lee Duffus 
Jim Emerson 
Kristin Fabos 
Duf Fischer 
Paula Fischer 
Peggy Flynn 
Joel-Ann Foote 
Mahlon Foote 
DeAnne Hart 
Rich Hart 
Jackie Heald 
Kent Imai 
Julie Lambert 
Marilyn Manning Lonergan 
Richard Lonergan 
Fred McPherson 
Kelly Nesheim 
Ed Newman 
Erica Ow 
William Ow 
Ginny Solari Mazry 
Burt Rees 
Steve Snodgrass 
Rachael Spencer 
Julie Thiebaut 
Rachel Wedeen 
Matt Wetstein 
Theo Wierdsma 
Paula Woods 
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 
 

SCHOLARSHIP 
Chair: Rachael Spencer 
Claire Biancalana 
Jess Brown 
Ceil Cirillo 
Virginia Coe 
Karen Cogswell 
Kathryn Cowan 
Linda Downing 
Jan Furman 
Rich Hart 
Adele Miller 
Corinne Miller 
Cory Ray 
Julie Thiebaut 
Rachel Wedeen 
Jill Wilson  
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
WOMEN'S EDUCATIONAL 
SUCCESS (WES)  
Co-chairs: 
   Mary Culley 
   Tonée Picard 
Peggy Downes Baskin, cofounder 
Shannon Brady 
Sue Broadston 
Lynette Cleland 
Cathy Conway 
Freny Cooper 
Kathryn Cowan 
Cynthia Druley 
Cynthia FitzGerald 
Corrine Flanagan 
Peggy Flynn 
Pam Goodman 
Amy Ivey 
Kathleen Jones 
Janet Krassow 
Chris Maffia 
Angie McClellan 
Martina O'Sullivan 
Mara Palandrani 
Carolyn Parham 
Gail Pellerin 
Patty Quillin 
Karen Semingson 
Rachael Spencer, cofounder 
Bunny Tavares 
Kate Terrell 
Karri White 
Kristin Wilson 
Donna Ziel 
 
WES Advisors: 
   Marcy Alancraig 
   Leti Amezcua 
   Jenna Becker 
   Rosemary Brogan 
   Sue Bruckner 
   Lauren Cole 
   Olga Diaz 
   Mario Garcia 
   Ofelia Garcia 
   Irma Gil 
   Holly Goodman 
   Gabby Huezo 
   Jay Jackson 
   Michelle Morton 
   Christina Ortega 
   Beth Regardz 
   Ana Rodriguez 
   Barbara Schultz-Perez 
   Nancy Spangler 
   Tasha Sturm 
   Laura Thurman 
   Windy Valdez 
   Marilyn Zanetti 
    Staff: Caitlin Bonura 

87


	MEMORANDUM
	DATE: September 8, 2021

	Terms of Office 2021-22.pdf
	Summary

	Cabrillo College Foundation Staff 9.8.21.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Net Assets Report By Year 2000-2021 Current.pdf
	Net Assets Chart

	Committee Calendar 9.7.21.pdf
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	AUDIT
	EXECUTIVE
	NOMINATING

	June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Financial Statements.pdf
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005
	006
	007
	008
	009
	010

	CCF Financial Report Narrative for July 31, 2021.pdf
	 Our return on investments for the MS Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS ESG Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Intermediate-Term Pool year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Short-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Title III Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Title V Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:

	July 31, 2021 Pre-Audit Financial Statements.pdf
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005
	006
	007
	008




